Public Document Pack

Overview and Scrutiny Board
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain
the safety of the public, staff and councillors.
The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and
input into the decision-making process.
Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed,
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.
Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.
Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus
DATE:

Wednesday, 2 December 2020

TIME:

2.00 pm

VENUE:

Microsoft Teams Meeting – the live audio broadcast can be
accessed via the link below:

AGENDA
LINK TO LIVE AUDIO BROADCAST:
This link will work if you are using a Microsoft device. If you are using
an Apple or android based device, you will need to download the
Microsoft Teams app in order to view the meeting via this link.
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetupjoin/19%3ameeting_N2JmNDc2YTItNzVmNi00YmRkLWEyMWEtOG
RiYTQ1ZTRmNzg5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2
268c00060-d80e-40a5-b83f3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229d684c1d-4eb2-40d0a3198a0562477992%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d
1

1:30pm - Members Only Briefing.

2

2:00pm - Overview and Scrutiny Board MS Teams Live Meeting.

3

Apologies for absence.

4

Declarations of Interest.

5

Minutes of meeting held on 4 November 2020.

(Pages 1 - 4)

6

Budget Monitoring and Savings Programme.

(Pages 5 - 20)

7

Spending Review - Briefing Note.

(Pages 21 - 24)

8

Covid19 Funding Update.

(Pages 25 - 26)

9

Preparations for February Meeting (Revenue Budget) - verbal
discussion.

10

Work Programme 2020/21.

11

Any other business

Contact Officer:
Tel No:
E-Mail:

Karen Berry - Principal Democratic Services Advisor
0161 793 2602
decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

(Pages 27 - 30)

Agenda Item 5
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD
Wednesday 4th November 2020
(Microsoft Live Teams meeting)
Present:
Councillors Jolley (in the chair), Bellamy, Brocklehurst, Burch, K. Garrido, King,
Morris, Pevitt, Sharpe and Turner.
Lead Members:
Councillor Hinds

Lead Member for Finance and Support Services

Officers:
Joanne Hardman
Chris Hesketh
Tony Thompstone
Mike Relph

Chief Financial Officer
Head of Financial Management
Strategic Finance Manager
Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Nelson.
2. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
3. Minutes
RESOLVED: THAT the minutes of the meeting held on 7 October 2020 be approved
as a correct record.
4. Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 Mid-Year Review
The Lead Member for Finance and Support Services submitted a report providing a
progress on the treasury management strategy for 2020/21 and an update on the
prudential indicators.
Members raised issues, commented and noted them, as follows:
(a) Was it possible to invest the additional H.M. Government funding which had been
provided during the Covid-19 Pandemic, prior to its distribution, if only for a brief time
and in turn receive interest? Yes and the funding had been invested in this manner,
generally on a short-term basis.
(b) Had monetary support been provided to local authorities to assist with the
administration of the various H.M. Government financial support schemes set up
during the Covid-19 Pandemic? Yes and such financial support to Salford City Council
had been provided.

Page 1

(c) As of 30th September 2020, Salford City Council had approximately £28m in
investments, what were these? This figure represented a total amount rather than a
single investment, with the money was invested in a variety of ways, often on a very
short-term basis.
RESOLVED: THAT the report and its contents be noted, together with the update to
the prudential indicators
5. Budget 2021/22 Proposals - Update
Councillor Hinds, Lead Member for Finance and Support Services and Joanne
Hardman, Chief Financial Officer, provided an update on the development of the
Salford City Council Budget 2021/22, together with the financial impact of the ongoing
Covid-19 Pandemic.
The following key issues were identified, for which Members commented on and
noted them, as follows:
(a) This would be the third successive year where the City Council would have to meet
a £25m deficit.
(b) Since the last update £7.6m of emergency H.M Government funding to mitigate
the impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic had been received, with the fourth tranche of
these the largest.
(c) The outcome of an application for H.M Government funding to mitigate the closure
of Salford Community Leisure (SCL) facilities during the pandemic was awaited.
(d) During the pandemic, comprehensive monthly financial returns for the City Council
were submitted to the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG).
(e) “Compensation” claims had been submitted to H.M Government to recoup the “lost
income” incurred by the City Council for such activities as car parking and planning
fees.
(f) Salford City Council had received an additional £300k of H.M Government funding
to support “test and trace” activities and ensure enforcement of social distancing
regulations.
(g) A total of £22m had been allocated to local authorities in Greater Manchester from
the Outbreak Management Fund.
(h) £400k had been distributed in Salford to qualifying residents, in the form of food
and essential supplies, together with other support to vulnerable citizens.
(i) Business support grants totalling £46.7m had been distributed through the City
Council in Salford.

Page 2

(j) The process for developing the Salford City Council 2021/22 was advancing, as
part of which it was anticipated the savings already identified would be achieved.
Details of the final Local Government Finance Settlement 2021/22 was still awaited
and was central to the process. The negative impact the Covid-19 pandemic on the
collection of business rates and council tax remained a key concern.
(k) Details were provided of the allocation of £60m which had been provided to the
ten Greater Manchester local authorities to support businesses and mitigate the
impact of the Tier 3 Covid-19 Social distancing regulations which had been imposed
on the region. The extension of the Job Retention (Furlough) Scheme beyond October
2020, was welcomed.
(l) It was noted that the impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic was a constantly changing
situation which, including the second national “lockdown”, made financial forecasting
difficult.
RESOLVED: THAT the update and the information provided be noted.
6. Scrutiny Panels’ Work Programmes 2020/21 - Updates
The Chairs of each of Salford City Council’s scrutiny panels provided an update of
their respective work programmes, current activities and future plans, including a
specific overview of activities since July 2020 and the impact the Covid-19 pandemic,
in which attention was drawn to the following:


Children’s (Councillor Adrian Brocklehurst)
o School re-openings and City Council’s response
o Educational resources
o Budget monitoring and identification and pressures
o Corporate Parenting Panel
o Route 29
o Child obesity
o Work programme and planned activities for early 2021 and beyond

Reference was made to transport costs for children with special needs. It was
indicated this was an ongoing issue which the Panel continued to monitor and
identify potential savings.


Community and Neighbourhoods (Councillor Tanya Burch)
o Place directorate - budget monitoring
o Covid-19 impact and recovery planning
o Greater Manchester Police (GMP) overview and update
o Salford community Leisure (SCL) summer 2020 youth provision and
activities
o H.M Government’s Environment Bill 2020 - England’s Resource and
Waste Strategy - overview and implications
o Renewal of Dog Control of Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs)



Health and Social Care (Councillor Margaret Morris)
o Covid-19 Pandemic - response and action plan

Page 3

o Mental health
o Establishment of three Covid-19 themed task groups:
 Care Homes and GP Support
 Communications
 GP Access and Support


Growth and Prosperity (Councillor Robert Sharpe)
o Vicars Hall Lane, Boothstown - consideration of call-in
o Greater Manchester Mayor’s Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund Salford initiatives
o Bridgewater Canal - National Lottery funding
o Salford Crescent Masterplan
o Transfer of Urban Vision staff and activities to Salford City Council

Reference was made to the responsibility for the long-term maintenance of the Barton
Lifting Bridge which formed part of the Western Gateway Infrastructure. It was
indicated this was an issue the panel could incorporate into its work programme.
RESOLVED: THAT the respective activities of the four scrutiny panels as
summarised above, be noted.
7. Work Programme 2020/21
Consideration was given to the Board’s Work Programme for 2020/21.
RESOLVED: THAT the Board’s Work Programme for 2020/21, be noted.
8. Date of Next Meeting
RESOLVED: THAT the next meeting of the Board will be held on Wednesday, 2nd
December 2020 at 2.00 pm, preceded by a briefing for members only at 1.30 pm, be
noted.

Page 4

Agenda Item 6
…….……………………………………………………………………………………
Part 1 – Open to the Public

REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER AND
LEAD MEMBER FOR FINANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD
2 DECEMBER 2020

TITLE: 2020/21 - BUDGET MONITORING AND SAVINGS PROGRAMME

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Members are asked to consider the current position regarding the 2020/21 revenue budget, savings
and capital programme, and consider actions to address budget pressures.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to outline the current position of expenditure against the 2020/21
budget, including the implications of the impact of COVID-19 on the council’s financial position, and
provide an update on the approved savings programme as at the end of September 2020.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Service budget monitoring reports to Lead Members, savings pro-formas and other finance working
papers.

KEY DECISION: NO

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Budget Strategy; Medium Term Financial Strategy

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
Equality impact assessments are assessed at an individual savings level by the service group
responsible.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
Key budgetary control risks are identified in this report, including forecast variances and risk levels
associated with the realisation of savings proposals. The financial impacts of COVID-19 have
increased the level of uncertainty and risk to the budget and to the medium term financial strategy.

Page 5
Page 1 of 15

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Not applicable to this report

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Included in body of report
Report produced by the finance team working with budget managers within service groups.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Not applicable to this report

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Not applicable to this report

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Not applicable to this report

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
All, council-wide matter

CONTACT OFFICERS:
Michelle Cowley

TEL NO: 0161 793 2520

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All

Page 6
Page 2 of 15

1

INTRODUCTION
1.1 This report sets out the current position of expenditure against the 2020/21 revenue and
capital budgets at 30 September 2020, including a summary of the current position with
regard to the 2020/21 savings programme.

2

BUDGET MONITORING POSITION
2.1 The current position by service group is shown in Table 1. As at the end of September, the
projected position for the year end is an overspend of £0.299m.
2.2 The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is projected to have a negative in-year variation of
£3.628m at the year end. This position includes £0.679m in respect of potential lost nursery
income caused by COVID-19. The remainder of the variance, £2.949m, is mainly due to
pressures within the High Needs block resulting from increasing demand and additional
council statutory duties for 19 to 25 year olds as a result of the Children’s and Families Act
for which no additional funding has been provided by central government. The Education
and Skills Funding Agency has agreed a DSG recovery plan which will be monitored during
the financial year.
2.3 Achievement of the annual budget depends on a number of assumptions. Key amongst
these are estimates of the achievable amount of agreed savings. Section 3 highlights the
most significant of these by service group.
2.4 The margin for error in the forecasts is greater than in “normal” years because of
uncertainties about the severity and length of the financial impact of COVID-19. Our
forecasts, reflected in monthly returns to MHCLG, make assumptions about the length and
severity of the pandemic and its effect on expenditure and income forecasts. These
assumptions are being continually revised as the national response to the pandemic
develops. The figures in this report are as at the end of September and as such do not
reflect any further impact of the second lockdown.
2.5 Available government COVID-19 funding is being applied to this financial year. Some
pressures, in particular those relating to council tax and business rates, will fall on future
years. While government has undertaken to examine the impact of COVID-19 on collection
fund income, at the moment there is no committed funding for future years. There therefore
remain significant risks to the council’s financial resilience over the medium term.

Page 7
Page 3 of 15

Table 1

General Fund
People (Children’s) - GF
People (Adults)
Place
Service Reform
Public Health
Precepts and Charges
Capital Financing
Other budgets
Social care
Govt emergency funding
Total General Fund
People (Children’s) - DSG

Annual

Forecast

Year end

£m

£m

£m

92.701
64.146
46.356
12.184
19.757
38.763
37.081
(73.827)
237.161

93.193
64.481
50.878
14.109
19.757
38.763
37.081
(62.969)
10.600
(28.433)
237.460

(0.492)
(0.335)
(4.522)
(1.925)
(10.858)
(10.600)
28.433
(0.299)

44.700

48.328

RAG

A (Red)
A (Red)
A (Red)
A (Red)
F (Green)
F (Green)
F (Green)
A (Red)
A (Red)
F (Green)
A (Red)

(3.628) A (Red)

2.6 People (Children’s)
The majority of children’s expenditure is incurred via joint commissioning arrangement
through the integrated fund. Further details are provided in Section 2.12 below.
The remaining non-integrated fund element of the children’s service group currently has a
budget pressure of £0.492m, which is largely due to a forecast underachievement of
external income.
2.7 People (Adults)
The majority of adults (adult social care) expenditure is incurred via a joint
commissioning arrangement through the integrated fund. Further details are provided in
Section 2.12 below.
The forecast outturn position for the service group for the financial year 2020/21 is an
overspend of £0.335m.
Services within the People Adults service group are working to maintain the high levels of
care to some of the most vulnerable users in the city under even more challenging
circumstances due to the outbreak of Covid-19. The budget pressures are mainly as a
direct result of changes to the service relating to the pandemic and relate to the
Supported Housing Service and the delivery of food parcels.
There was also a predicted overspend in the Salford Assist service, due to the costs
associated with providing food vouchers and help with meeting utilities costs during the
current period. Grant funding has been announced to meet the cost of providing food and
essential supplies and it is therefore anticipated that this overspend will be offset.

Page 8
Page 4 of 15

2.8 Place
The adverse outturn position for the service group for the financial year 2020/21 is
£4.522m.
Covid-19 has had a substantial impact on income within Place, particularly across
advertising on the highways, parking, planning and building control, school and
commercial catering and trade waste.
The underlying budget pressures within the service remain, primarily in relation to previous
years’ savings aligned to the implementation of transformation savings, Public Health and
The Landing.
2.9 Service Reform
There is an adverse forecast outturn of £1.925m partly driven by income loss across a
range of service areas, for example registrars and externally-provided services. In addition,
there is a significant budget pressure within Legal and Governance services. Further work
is being undertaken with the shared legal service and service groups to consider how costs
could be reduced.
2.10 Public Health
The service group is currently forecast to spend to budget. This will continue to be
monitored closely especially in terms of any potential expenditure due to the ongoing
pandemic. Initial assumptions are that new responsibilities such as track and trace will be
funded within allocated grant levels.
The large proportion of public health expenditure is incurred via joint commissioning
arrangement through the integrated fund. Further details are provided below.
2.11 Other budgets
The variance arises from a number of significant, corporate COVID-19 pressures including
the anticipated loss of dividends and interest income, increased borrowing costs, the
council’s contribution to GM emergency mortuary costs and an increase in forecast debt
write-offs.
2.12 Social care (risks around integrated arrangements)
Forecast position
The forecast outturn in table 1 reflects a range of risks around social care arrangements,
within and outside the fund. These include the possibility of further provider support being
necessary, the possibility that the risk share arrangement will be activated and risks to
NHS funding streams currently expected to support social care COVID-19 pressures.
Integrated Fund
In 2019/20 the Council and Salford CCG expanded their pooled budget arrangements
through the creation of an integrated fund covering a range of children’s, adults’ and
primary care services. Under the terms of the risk share agreement the council would be
required to put in additional funding to make good a proportion of any shortfall in relation
to the children’s and adult’s element of the integrated fund.

Page 9
Page 5 of 15

Children’s
The majority of Children’s expenditure is incurred via a joint commissioning arrangement
through the children’s section of the integrated fund. The opening position on the integrated
fund for children’s included a net uplift in the budget of approximately £5.8m, reflecting
both the budget pressures in 2019/20 and anticipated savings from the transformation
programme, most of which (£5m) has been retained as a contingency against pressures
rather than allocated to specific service areas at this early stage in the year.
There are a range of factors that will significantly influence expenditure in relation to the
integrated fund in 2020/21. The partners of the fund are working to quantify the immediate
impact on expenditure and funding as a result of Covid-19, whilst also trying to model the
financial impact of how services will continue to be delivered as part of planning for
recovery, with a high level estimate of cost / income loss pressures of approximately
£5.9m. This pressure would be on top of the underlying (non-covid) pressure of circa
£1.5m. The forecast position for the integrated fund for children’s will continue to be
reported through the Children’s Commissioning Committee.
Funding arrangements for the integrated fund are governed by a risk share agreement
between the partners. Any under / overspend will be shared between partners in proportion
to their funding contribution. The risk to the council should be seen as high and should
there be an overspend the council will be required to contribute 68% of the total
Adults (Adult Social Care and Public Health)
The majority of Adult Social Care expenditure is incurred via a joint commissioning
arrangement through the adult’s section of the integrated fund. The opening position on
the integrated fund for adults required a saving in the region of £2m to be delivered.
There are a range of factors that will significantly influence expenditure in relation to the
integrated fund in 2020/21. The partners of the fund along with providers are working to
quantify the impact on expenditure and funding as a result of Covid-19, whilst also trying
to model the financial impact of how services will continue to be delivered as part of
planning for recovery. Any under / overspend will be shared between partners in proportion
to their funding contribution and, should there be an overspend, the council will be required
to contribute 20% of the total.
The immediate response to supporting Adult Social Care services during the pandemic
has also led to the development of a “Salford Offer” to the market to provide a package of
support measures. The cost of this package of support is currently being managed by the
partners of the fund and it is intended to be met through a combination of Salford CCG’s
funding drawdown as part of its share of the £1.3bn support available nationally in relation
to hospital discharge, Salford City Council’s share of the support for Covid-19 related
pressures and the two rounds of Infection Control funding provided to Salford City Council
(£1.9m & £2m).
Government emergency funding
Includes tranches 1 to 4 of the government’s emergency COVID-19 funds plus an estimate
of the full year reimbursement claim for lost sales, fees and charges income. The funding
for lost income will not cover commercial income, which represents a significant portion of
the council’s income loss, nor will it cover income lost by SCL.
2.13 Comparison to COVID-19 returns to CLG
The council’s October return (number 7) to CLG identifies an estimated £54.8 of pressures,
of which £51.4m arise in 2020/21.

Page 10
Page 6 of 15

Of the £51.4m pressures:







£19.6m relates to the collection fund (BR and ctax). Because of the statutory
mechanisms, the direct impact of these pressures will fall on future years rather
than 2020/21. Normally they would fall on the immediately following year, ie
2021/22, but new Regulations in response to Covid19 require the impact instead to
be spread over three years, 2021/22 to 2023/24. These pressures will be accounted
for in a review of the council’s MTFS.
£0.7m relates to DSG
£0.1m relates to HRA
£2.7m relates to provisions for possible scenarios about which decisions have not
yet been made
The remaining £28.3m is either recognised in the general fund service positions
reported above and in table 1 or is being managed within services’ overall financial
positions.

We have had to make assumptions about the length and severity of the impact of COVID19 and its financial effect on residents and businesses. Our evidence on which to
extrapolate forecasts is limited given continual changes in the national and local position
for the pandemic and the response to it. We will continue to revise our estimates and
forecast as more evidence becomes available. Should the impact on the economy be
prolonged, we will face additional risks of lost income and additional expenditure demands
to support our residents.
Government general emergency funding so far is £28.4m, including an estimate for
reimbursement of lost sales, fees and charges income. There is as yet no committed
funding solution to recognise the impacts on 2021/22 and future years.
2.14 Whilst making monthly returns to MHCLG and estimating the financial impact upon the
council, the key issue is the mitigation of pressures as far as possible and the management
of the remaining pressure upon the budget. Options to address these pressures include:


Review of the Medium Term Financial Strategy



Use of earmarked reserves and general balances



Review of budgets



Access to further external funds

This work is ongoing and will be included within existing budget processes.
3

CURRENT RISK STATUS OF SAVINGS
3.1 As part of a risk assessment process, the lead officer for each service group supported by
the relevant Strategic Finance Manager have categorised each savings proposal as
follows:

Page 11
Page 7 of 15

Table 2

Rating

Risk

Definition

2020/21 Saving
£m

Green

Low

The saving has already been achieved, or there is
a low likelihood of not achieving the savings target.

1.230

Amber

Medium

There is a medium risk attached to achieving the
approved savings target, the saving is assumed as
being achieved in the year end forecast position.

4.451

Red

High

There is a higher risk of not achieving the full
savings target in these proposals.

Total

5.681

3.2 Table 2 above shows the current risk associated with the savings proposals for 2020/21
for the Council as a whole. It is expected that service groups will mitigate the impact of
those savings highlighted high or medium risk through underspends in other areas.
3.3 Table 3 below breaks down the risk across each service group.
Table 3
RAG Rating

People People - Place
Children's Adults
£m
£m
£m

Green Achieved/ Low
Amber Medium
Red
High

4

1.758
1.758

1.762
1.762

1.230
1.230

Service Public
Reform Health
£m
£m
0.031
0.031

0.900
0.900

Central
Resources
£m
-

Total
£m
2.130
3.551
5.681

RESERVES POSITION
4.1 The general fund reserve is a useable reserve intended to provide adequate cover to
address the strategic, operational and financial risks facing the authority.
4.2 As reported in the 2019/20 outturn report, the opening balance on reserves as at the 1
April 2020 is £13.2m.
4.3 The council must have regard to the advice of its CFO in setting a minimum level of the
reserve. For 2020/21, the council set a minimum level of £12.68m and a desirable target
of £22.055m.

5

CAPITAL MONITORING
5.1 This section sets out recent developments regarding the 2020/21 capital programme.
Appendix A attached provides a detailed scheme-by-scheme analysis of the programme,
including sources of funding and spend to the end of September.

Page 12
Page 8 of 15

5.2 The current 2020/21 approved capital programme is £171.388m as shown in Table 5,
analysed by service group. The increase to the programme of £0.022m since last reported
in August is detailed in section 5.4.
5.3 Programme virements
Place have been granted approval under the constitution for the virement of resources
between services identified in table 4.
Table 4 – virements within Place

Scheme Group

Scheme Name

Strategic Connections
Regeneration

Madamswood Road SBNI

Empty properties
Housing Enforcement
Housing reg Services

Resources no
longer required
for the purpose
of the 20/21 bid

Additional
resources
required before
31/03/21

£m

£m
-

0.295
0.295

Empty properties
Housing Enforcement

(0.054)
(0.300)
(0.354)

-

Property General
Property

Property General

(0.103)
(0.103)

-

Operational Divison
Buile Hill Mansion
Environment

Fleet Replacement Strategy
Buile Hill Mansion

(0.800)
(0.800)

1.100
1.100

Highways Investment Programme Highways Investment Programme
Block 3 schemes
Block 3 schemes (grant)
Highways

(0.195)
(0.100)
(0.295)

-

SCL
Cultural Development Schemes
SCL IT equipment
Brookhouse Changing Rooms
SCL

(0.114)
(0.114)

0.168
0.103
0.271

(1.666)

1.666

Salford Museum & Art Gallery
SCL IT equipment
Brookhouse Changing Rooms

Total

In addition to the above virements, there has been an approved virement £0.160m
(unsupported borrowing) for the Urban Tree Challenge, from the Green City Fund within
the Regeneration Strategic Place Making grouping to the Environment grouping. This
virement is reflective of scheme management by the Environment team.
5.4 Programme variations
Highways +£0.022m
There has been an increase to the Highways programme of £0.022m in S106 resource,
for the delivery of a tree planting scheme on the A580.

5.5 Expenditure to date is £43.338m against the annual programme of £171.388m. A
13 A. As a result of the analysis of the impact
breakdown by service can be found Page
in Appendix
Page 9 of 15

of COVID-19 on the capital programme, several schemes are expected to be re-profiled
to 2021/22. These will be updated in October’s report.
Project managers, supported by Finance, will continue to monitor the capital programme
to ensure that schemes remain on track.
Table 5: Capital Programme and Expenditure

Service

Invest to
Unsupported Grant
Other
Approved
Spend to
Save/ Self borrowing
External Programme Sept.
financing
2020-21
2020
Place
44.551
40.985 42.843
1.389
129.769
26.732
People - Adults
10.227
3.149
13.376
0.778
People - Children's
1.672
9.280
10.952
1.420
Service Reform
16.680
0.612
17.291
14.409
71.458
43.269 55.273
1.389
171.388
43.338
6

RECOMMENDATION
6.1 Members are asked to consider the current position regarding the 2020/21 revenue
budget, savings and capital programme, and consider actions to address budget
pressures.

Page 14
Page 10 of 15

Appendix A - Capital Programme 2020/21
Scheme Group

Sub area

Invest to
save/ self
financing

Unsupported Grant
borrowing

Other
Approved Spend to
External Programme September
2020-21
2020

PLACE

Page 15

Regeneration
Regeneration
Regeneration
Regeneration
Regeneration
Regeneration
Regeneration
Regeneration
Regeneration
Regeneration
Regeneration
Regeneration

Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services
Housing - Reg. Services

Pre-Imp Development
Pre-Imp Infrastructure
City Centre Salford
Ordsall and Salford Quays
Western Gateway
Town centres
RHS Bridgewater
Strategic Connections
Strategic Place Making
Strategic environmental Infrastructure plan

Strategic development
Regeneration related project costs
Regeneration total
Home Improvement Agency
Winter Welfare
Affordable warmth
Handyperson
Project Development Costs
Salford Money Line
Housing project costs
Landlord Accreditation
DCLG Cluster
Empty properties
Housing enforcement
Housing crime reduction
CPO
Housing Regulatory Services total

-

0.160
0.386
2.770
0.721
0.179
0.624
1.352
1.238
0.164
0.050
0.050
1.297

10.266
5.544
0.050
1.135
10.863
-

-

0.160
0.386
13.036
6.265
0.179
0.674
2.487
12.101
0.164
0.050
0.050
1.297

0.031
0.018
0.454
1.368
0.003
0.003
1.429
2.840
0.006
0.432

-

8.991

27.857

-

36.848

6.583

-

0.219
0.134
0.138
0.350
0.525
0.040
0.505
0.001
0.010
0.243
1.292
0.259
0.095
3.810

0.240
0.240

-

0.219
0.134
0.138
0.350
0.525
0.040
0.505
0.001
0.010
0.484
1.292
0.259
0.095
4.051

0.021
0.018
0.099
0.001
0.035
0.034
0.002
0.210

Page 11 of 15

Scheme Group

Sub area

Housing Strategy and Enabling

Creating a new Pendleton

Invest to
save/ self
financing

Housing Strategy and Enabling Disabled Facilities work
Housing Strategy and Enabling

Duchy Gypsy and Travellers site

Housing Strategy and Enabling Project Development Costs Hsg Strat

Tower block safety works
Housing Strategy and Enabling Housing delivery and development
Housing Strategy and Enabling Derive
Housing Strategy and Enabling HRA new builds
Housing Strategy and Enabling

Housing Strategy and Enabling Housing & Planning capitalised costs

Housing Strategy and Enabling total

Page 16

Property
Property
Property
Property
Property

Low carbon (carbon management)
Property - General
Property - new premises
100 Embankment
Cost of disposals *
Property total

Environment
Environment
Environment
Environment
Environment

Greenspace & Streetscene Infrastructure

Parks Improvement Schemes
Buile Hill Mansion
Bereavement
Operational Division Schemes
Environment total

Unsupported Grant
borrowing

Other
Approved Spend to
External Programme September
2020-21
2020

22.237
1.377
3.919
27.533

1.186
0.250
0.100
4.000
0.485
2.020
0.106
8.147

0.006
5.738
5.744

-

1.186
0.250
0.100
4.000
22.729
3.397
9.657
0.106
41.424

0.238
0.093
0.021
2.497
0.196
3.045

2.184
14.604
16.788
0.230
0.230

0.967
4.531
0.200
0.060
5.758
0.675
0.055
0.300
0.050
4.967
6.048

1.292
1.292
0.125
0.125

0.779
0.779

4.443
4.531
0.200
14.664
23.838
0.675
0.834
0.425
0.050
5.197
7.182

0.126
0.896
11.501
0.105
12.628
0.206
0.183
0.034
0.979
1.402

Page 12 of 15

Scheme Group

Sub area

Highways
Highways
Highways
Highways
Highways
Highways
Highways
Highways
Highways
Highways

Capitalisation of highways maintenance

Page 17

SCL
SCL
SCL
SCL
SCL
SCL
SCL
SCL
SCL
SCL
Place Total

Highways Investment Programme
Crash Barrier Programme (S)
Drainage & Culvert Investment Programme

Construction schemes
Structures
Signs and Bollards
Highways Network Management
Lighting Programme (High Mast)
Block 3
Highways total
Leisure Centre Equipment
Printer Refresh
SCL IT Equipment
Worsley Leisure Centre Refurbishment

Pendleton Leisure Centre
Cleavley track - Synthetic Track Repair

Brookhouse Changing Rooms
Salford Roosters Changing Rooms
Salford Sports Village
Cultural Development Schemes
Leisure total

Invest to
save/ self
financing

Unsupported Grant
borrowing

Other
Approved Spend to
External Programme September
2020-21
2020

-

1.980
1.320
0.104
0.403
0.565
1.124
0.122
0.032
0.119
0.030
5.799

0.600
1.590
0.328
4.580
7.098

0.172
0.172

1.980
1.920
0.104
0.403
2.154
1.452
0.122
0.032
0.119
4.783
13.069

1.197
0.007
0.064
0.033
0.001
0.535
1.838

44.551

0.071
0.168
0.016
0.969
0.398
0.174
0.274
0.362
2.433
40.985

0.013
0.097
0.378
0.487
42.843

0.110
0.028
0.299
0.438
1.389

0.071
0.110
0.168
0.016
0.981
0.398
0.270
0.681
0.299
0.362
3.357
129.769

0.026
0.089
0.338
0.149
0.032
0.256
0.137
1.026
26.732

Page 13 of 15

Sub area

People
Children's
Children's
Children's
Children's
Children's

Pupil Place Planning
School Condition
SEND
Children's other
Social Care Management replacement

Adults
Adults
Adults
Adults

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)
Intermediate Care Facility
Community Capacity Grant
Mid-wife Unit

Page 18

Scheme Group

People Total
Service Reform
ICT
Corporate
Service Reform Total
Capital programme total

ICT
Strategic investments

Invest to
save/ self
financing

Unsupported Grant
borrowing

Other
Approved Spend to
External Programme September
2020-21
2020

10.227
10.227
10.227

1.672
1.672
1.672

5.218
3.123
0.940
9.280
3.085
0.064
3.149
12.429

-

5.218
3.123
0.940
1.672
10.952
3.085
10.227
0.064
13.376
24.328

0.010
0.926
0.002
0.036
0.445
1.420
0.053
0.685
0.040
0.778
2.197

16.680
16.680

0.612
0.612

-

-

0.612
16.680
17.291

0.991
13.417
14.409

71.458

43.269

55.273

1.389

171.388

43.338

Page 14 of 15

Page 19
Page 15 of 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Headlines from Spending Review
General
Core Spending Power of Councils increases by 4.5% or £2.2 billion to £51.2
billion in 2021-22. Sigoma estimate the composition of this to be approximately:
£m
Assumed Council Tax increase 1,500
Additional social care grant
300
CPI inflation
300
The assumed council tax increase is based upon 5% increase to council tax
charges covering both core increase and adult social care precept.
Covid19 funding
In addition to core spending power government have provided for an additional
£3 billion of Covid funding nationally in 2021-22 made up of:
Grant funding for further covid 19 pressures
Help with Council Tax support scheme costs
A 75% contribution to Council Tax and Business
Rate irrecoverable losses relating to 2020-21
Extending the compensation for irrecoverable Sales
Fees and Charges pressures to June 2021

£ billion
1.550
0.670
0.762
0.018

It is worth noting that the value of covid related support identified above assumes
an improving position in 2021/22 in terms of financial impacts upon local
government however this will be subject to review.
Funding allocations have not been confirmed although it is hoped that the timing
of announcements will be in line with the provisional settlement which is
expected week beginning 14th December. The definition and method of
calculation of irrecoverable council tax and business rates losses will be key to
understanding the impact upon 2021/22 and it is anticipated that the details of
the scheme will be available in December.

Council Tax
Council Tax referendum limits will be maintained at up to 2% with an additional
3% adult social care precept permitted for upper tier councils. There will
potentially be flexibility to apply the 3% precept over a two year period so
2021/22 and 2022/23.

Page 21

Police and Crime Commissioners will have a £15 council tax referendum limit at
band D level.
Any referendum limits relating to mayoral combined authorities will be announced
with the provisional settlement.

Business Rates

Business rate multiplier will be frozen in 2021/22 with councils being
compensated for the loss in business rate income.
The government will not proceed with a reset of business rates baselines in
2021/22 and will maintain the existing 100 per cent business rates pilots for a
further year. It is now anticipated that the reset will be implemented in 2022/23.
The government has not confirmed whether the covid related business rates
relief scheme will continue into 2021/22.

New Homes Bonus
It was anticipated that NHB would end in its current formal in 2021/22 with only
legacy payments from earlier years being received. The government has now
confirmed that the scheme will continue for another year with payments being
made based upon growth in property numbers however no new legacy payments
will be generated. Effectively this is an extension of the 2020/21 approach. We
had anticipated the end of the scheme but also assumed that there would be
some recycling of funding released through the termination of the scheme.
MHCLG have confirmed that any underspend (presumably driven by lower
numbers of new homes than anticipated due to covid and its wider impact on the
economy) will be recycled within the overall local government funding envelope.
A review of new homes bonus will be issued shorty for implementation in
2022/23.

PWLB
PWLB lending rates reduced to gilts + 100bps for Standard Rate and gilts +
80bps for Certainty Rate taking them back to pre October 2019 level when the
rate was adjusted in response to government concerns around the use of PWLB
to engage in investments for yield.. Restrictions on the use of PWLB for
commercial investment have been reaffirmed with authorities needing to confirm

Page 22

that there will be no intention to invest in assets primarily for yield at any point in
the next three years.

Other funding announcements include:The government is launching a new Levelling Up Fund worth £4 billion for
England. This will invest in local infrastructure that has a visible impact on people
and their communities and will support economic recovery with examples being
bypasses, bus lanes, railway station upgrades, town centres. It will be open to all
local areas in England and prioritise bids to drive growth and regeneration in
places in need, those facing particular challenges, and areas that have received
less government investment in recent years. The government will publish a
prospectus and launch the scheme in the new year.
The government has published Head of Terms for the Shared Prosperity Fund
(the replacement for EU structural and investment funds) and will set out further
details in Spring. The value of the SPF will average £1.5 billion per year with
£220m being available for pilots in 2021/22. - further details to be published in the
new year.
Troubled families programme will continue in 2021/22.
Public Health funding will be maintained but awaiting further details, for example
is this a flat cash amount or adjusted for inflation.
MHCLG have confirmed that all social care grants will be rolled forward into
2021/22 in addition to the new funding of £300 million for social care which can
be used for both adults and children’s social care. The basis of allocating the
£300m is still to be confirmed.
Capital investment in school buildings. Further funding for new school places for
children with SEN and disabilities.
Capital investment to maintain and expand provision of secure children’s homes.
Confirmation of housing capital grant funding for purposes such as land
remediation and assembly.
Funding for various low carbon and energy efficiency measures such as making
public buildings greener and retrofitting social housing.
Funding for active travel schemes (£257m) and local roads maintenance (£1.7bn)

Page 23

Funding for rough sleepers and homelessness £254m of which £103m has been
announced previously.
Additional £98m nationally to enable authorities to deliver new duty to support
victims of domestic abuse and their children in safe accommodation.
Holiday Activities Fund of £220m to provide activities and healthy meals for
disadvantaged children in Easter, Summer and Christmas holidays in 2021/2.

Page 24

Schedule of Covid related funding
Grant

Emergency Covid Support

Allocation
£

26,632,927

Sales, Fees and Charges lost income

1,327,000

Hardship Fund

3,581,800

403,701

Support for clinically extremely
vulnerable individuals

170,000

Page 25

Emergency Assistance grant for Food
and essential supplies

Winter Grant scheme

1,089,353

Compliance and Enforcement grant

182,799

Reopening High Streets safely

230,071

To assist with additional costs and income loss associated with Covid19.
Formula to compensate authorities for loss of sfc income based upon claims and year
end reconciliation. £1.3m has been drawn down to date.
National pot of £50m to be used to reduce council tax bills (by £150) of working age
people in receipt of council tax reduction. Residual funding can be used to support local
welfare schemes.

Basis of allocation
4 tranches allocated on various
bases however 4th tranche
attempted to adjust earlier
allocations to reflect relative needs
formula.
Claimed in arrears

Council tax support scheme caseload

National pot of £163m to be used for food and essential supplies to help those struggling Population weighted by a function
to afford food and essentials due to Covid.
of IMD as proxy for need
National pot of £32m to support CEV individuals during second lockdown including
contact, assessing food and basic support and facilitating support where necessary.
National pot of £170m to provide direct assistance to vulnerable households and families
with children particularly affected by covid. To cover the period December 2020 to
March 2021. 80% of funding ringfenced to provide support with food. Energy and water
bills.
£15m national scheme to protect vulnerable people - focus on homelessness and rough
sleepers.. Salford selected for funding - awaiting allocation. Follows Everybody In
programme administered across GM. Also received allocation for Next Steps £2.7m
through bidding process, most of which is for longer term plan to deliver more
accommodation.
National pot of £30m to provide practical support to encourage compliance, raising
awareness of guidance and regulations and enfocement
National pot of £50m ERDF funding to enable safe trading including comms to
community/business and temporary public realm changes. Claimed in arrears in line
with ERDF conditions.

£14.60 per CEV individual on
shielded patient list.

Population with IMD weighting

Relative Needs Formula

Population

Agenda Item 8

Protect Programme

Purpose

Emergency Active Travel fund

1,030,000

Test and Trace
Contain
Contain outbreak management

1,975,758
300,000
2,070,672

Infection Control funding - Phase 1

1,935,692

Infection Control funding Phase 2

2,088,230

Isolation Support payments

Page 26

Business Grants (Small business grants
and retail, hospitality and leisure
grants)
Local Restrictions support grant - open

286,076

46,681,000
1,795,587

Local Restrictions support grant - closed

Local Restrictions support grant - closed

3,382,128

Additional restrictions grant

5,477,000

Local Restrictions support grant - sector

Emergency walking and cycling scheme allocated through GM supplemented by the
Mayor's Challenge Fund £0.5m
National pot of £300m to develop outbreak control plans, identifying and containing
potential outbreaks
20/21 Public Health Grant allocations
Additional funding to support test and trace reflecting higher incidence of covid19
Engagement, compliance and tracing funding including support for vulnerable population £8 per head of population
Number of care home beds
National pot of £600m to improve infection control in care settings to September 2020. weighted for an area cost
Funding passported to care providers based upon national formula.
adjustment
Number of care home beds and
National pot of £546m to continue with infection control in care settings to March 2021. community care users weighted for
Funding passported to care providers based upon national formula
an area cost adjustment
Payment of isolation payments to those advised to isolate meeting set criteria £152k
(initial allocation but will vary depending upon take up). Discretionary scheme £91k and Council reimbursed for national
administration £43k
scheme based upon spend.
Initial scheme to support business at the beginning of the pandemic. Also included a
discretionary scheme eg for those businesses that were not on the rating list £2.2m. In
total 4120 grants paid out. The govt also extended the rate relief scheme for the retail,
leisure and hospitality sector and awarded relief to nurseries at an estimated total value Council reimbursed for national
of £32m.
scheme based upon spend.
Discretionary scheme to support businesses impacted by restrictions 1 Aug - 4 Nov
Assessment of VOA data.
No allocation yet but scheme to support businesses that had to close due to tier 3
restrictions
Initial allocation based on 90% of
National grant scheme for businesses during second lockdown depending upon rateable need as per VOA listing but final
value.
funding will reflect actual spend.
Funding for discretionary scheme to support businesses severly affected by covid. Unlike
national scheme this can be used for businesses not on the rating list. Can be used up to
March 22.
Approximately £20 per head
No allocation yet but national scheme for businesses closed in March and not allowed to
reopen eg nightclub

Overview and Scrutiny Board
Work Programme and Recommendation Tracker as of 24 November 2020
Please note: There will be a Members only briefing at 1.30pm, with the main committee commencing at 2.00pm (unless otherwise stated).
SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS
Date
2 December
2020

2nd

Topic
Quarter Budget Monitoring Report.

Responsible officer (s)
Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Spending Review – Briefing Note

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Covid19 Funding Update

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Page 27

Preparations for February Meeting (Revenue Budget) – verbal discussion Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman
No meeting

3 February

Revenue Budget & Capital Programme for 2021/22

Schedule Lead Members with their Executive
Support and Director - 30/45 minute timeslots

Treasury Management Strategy

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Procurement Strategy – schedule March 2021.
(Living wage and social value considerations)
(Last report submitted June 2019).

Anthony Hilton, Debbie Brown and Cllr Hinds

3rd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Pandemic Recovery – Workforce and Digital Update
(Last report submitted October 2020)

Councillors Hinds & Bentham, Sam Betts &
Steven Fry

Apprenticeship Strategy update – schedule December 2020
(Last the report submitted July 2019)

Councillor Bentham - Executive Support
Member, Sam Betts and Frank O’Sullivan

3 March

7 April

Agenda Item 10

January 2021

ABEYANCE LIST
Corporate Performance report
December 2020 deferred to a future meeting

Jim Taylor and Jacquie Russell

Update on the integration with the CCG: Children’s, Adults and
Public Health

Cllr Merry, Charlotte Ramsden, Muna Abdel-Aziz and Cllr
Reynolds

Fair Funding Review – updates as and when available will be
included in reports

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Business Rates Retention Scheme - updates as and when
available will be included in reports.

Councillor Hinds and Joanne Hardman

Page 28

Financial Investment overview of the University/Council
Master Plan – Schedule summer 2021

TBC

SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MONITORING REPORTS
Corporate Performance report
Half year report – December & end of year report July
Treasury Management Strategy. Schedule February each year.
Treasury Management Outturn Report – schedule September each year.
Mid-year Treasury Management report – schedule November each year
Revenue Budget and Capital Programme. Schedule February each year.
1st Quarter Budget Monitoring Report. Schedule September each year

Councillor Boshell and Jacquie
Russell
Councillor Hinds and Joanne
Hardman
Councillor Hinds and Joanne
Hardman
Councillor Hinds and Joanne
Hardman
Councillor Hinds and Joanne
Hardman
Councillor Hinds and Joanne
Hardman
2

2nd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report - Schedule December each year.

Councillor Hinds and Joanne
Hardman
Councillor Hinds and Joanne
Hardman

3rd Quarter Budget Monitoring Report – Schedule March each year.
4th Quarter - Outturn Report. Schedule July each year.

Cllr Hinds and Joanne Hardman

REVIEWS
No reviews planned at present.

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER

Page 29

No recommendations presently outstanding

Portfolio of the Board:

Membership – 11 Members:

1.Co-ordinating the work of the Scrutiny Panels.
Councillors
2. Scrutinising corporate services.
 Turner
3. conducting a programme of value for money scrutinies.
 Garrido, Karen
4. Considering reports from the Audit and Accounts Committee.
 Bellamy
5. Scrutinising overall budget matters and all other financial
 Brocklehurst
matters, including the Treasury Management Strategy.
 Burch
6. To receive reports from the Scrutiny Panels on a six-monthly
 Jolley - Chair
basis.
 King – Vice Chair
7. To consider requests for scrutiny reviews under the Councillor
 Morris
Call for Action process (other than calls for action relating to
 Nelson
Crime and Disorder matters where requests shall be referred
 Sharpe
directly to the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel.
 Pevitt
3

This page is intentionally left blank

